


























i Obtain an EPA certification for the firm prior to performing renovations;

ii. Provide the EPA-approved pamphlet to a lessee or adult occupant before renovation
activities begin and obtain written verification that the pamphlet was provided;

iii. Ensure that a certified renovator either performs the renovation or directs a properly
trained worker to perform the renovation; and,

iv. Retain all records necessary to demonstrate compliance with the same for three
years.
See 40 C.F.R. §§ 745.81(a)(2), 745.84(a)(2), 745.89(d)(1)-(2), and 745.86(a) and (b).

19.  Pursuant to Section 409 of TSCA, it is unlawful for any person to fail to comply
with any rule issued under Subchapter [V of TSCA (such as the Disclosure Rule or the RRP
Rule). Pursuant to 40 C.F.R. § 745.87(a), the failure to comply with a requirement of the RRP
Rule is a violation of Section 409 of TSCA. Pursuant to 40 C.F.R. § 745.87(b), the failure to
establish and maintain the records required by the RRP Rule is a violation of Sections 15 and
409 of TSCA.

20. Section 16(a)(1) of TSCA, 15 U.S.C. § 2615(a)(1), provides that any person who
violates a provision of Section 15 or 409 of TSCA shall be liable to the United States for a civil
penalty.

21. Section 16(a) of TSCA, Section 1018(b)(5) of the Act, and 40 C.F.R. § 745.118(f)
authorize the assessment of a civil penalty of $10,000 per violation of the Disclosure Rule.
Pursuant to the Debt Collection Improvement Act of 1996, 31 U.S.C. § 3701 (“Debt Collection
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Improvement Act”), and 40 C.F.R. Part 19, violations that occurred after January 30, 1997
through January 12, 2009 are subject to civil penalties of up to $11,000 per day per violation and
violations that occurred after January 12, 2009 are subject to civil penalties of up to $16,000 per
day per violation. See 78 Fed. Reg. 66643, 66647 (November 6, 2013).

22. TSCA Section 16(a), 40 C.F.R. § 745.87(d), and 40 C.F.R. § 745.235(e) authorize
the assessment of a civil penalty of up to $25,000 per day per violation of the RRP Rule. Under
the Debt Collection Improvement Act and 40 C.F.R. Part 19, violations that occurred after March
15, 2004 through January 12, 2009 are subject to penalties of up to $32,500 per day per violation
and violations that occurred after January 12, 2009 are subject to penalties of up to $37,500 per
day per violation. See 78 Fed. Reg. 66643, 66647.

II. GENERAL ALLEGATIONS

23.  All of the Respondents are limited liability corporations, with the exception of
Quinnipiac Gardens, Inc. which is a corporation, organized under the laws of the State of
Connecticut. Respondent Pike operates as a real estate management and development company
with its principal place of business located at 19 Howe Street — Carriage House, New Haven,
Connecticut. Pike manages approximately 850 residential units. The remaining Respondents,
which list 19 Howe Street, New Haven, CT, as their business address, own the following

properties in New Haven, CT, that are managed by Respondent Pike:
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Property Owner Date Constructed
175 Park Street 173-175 Park Street, 1925
LLC
1533 Chapel/300 1533 Chapel LLC 1900
Winthrop
1314 Quinnipiac Quinnipiac Gardens, 1961
Ave./1 Quinnipiac Ct Inc.
17 Edgewood Ave. H & H Residential, 1837
House LLC
37 Lynwood Place H & H Residential, 1900
House LLC
608 George St. FOR LIFE LLC 1906
293 Norton Street 287 Norton Street, 1900
LLC
335 Fountain Street 325 Fountain, LLC 1963
226 Ellsworth Avenue H & H Residential, 1927
LLC
! 477 Prospect Street 477 Prospect, LLC 1900
! 80 Sherman Ave. 80 Sherman, LLC 1920
| 33 Howe Street 33 Howe, LLC 1910

24. At all times relevant to the RRP Rule violations alleged in this Complaint, Pike
utilized its own employees or agents to conduct renovation activities in the target housing Pike
operates.

25.  The president of Pike, Sam Hecht, also is the manager of the Respondent LLCs
listed in paragraph 23 above, and the president of Respondent Quinnipiac Gardens, Inc., listed

above.

In the Matter of Pike International, LLC, et al; TSCA-01-2016-0034
10



















































the Debt Collection Improvement Act and 40 C.F.R. Part 19, the maximum penalty shall be no
more than $16,000 for each such violation occurring after January 12, 2009.

90. Section 409 of TSCA and 40 C.F.R. § 745.87 provide that, for purposes of
enforcing the RRP Rule under TSCA, the penalty for each violation under Section 16 of TSCA
shall be no more than $25,000. Pursuant to the Debt Collection Improvement Act and 40 C.F.R.
Part 19, the maximum penalty shall be no more than $37,500 for each such violation occurring
after January 12, 2009.

91. In determining the amount of any penalty to be assessed, Section 16(a) of TSCA
requires EPA to consider the nature, circumstances, extent and gravity of the violations and, with
respect to the violator, ability to pay, the effect of the proposed penalty on the ability of the
violator to continue to do business, any history of prior such violations, the degree of culpability
of the violator, and such other matters as justice may require. See 15 U.S.C. § 2615(a)(2)(B). To
assess a penalty for the violations alleged herein, Complainant has taken into account the
particular facts and circumstances of this éase with specific reference to the following EPA
policy documents: (i) for Disclosure Rule violations, the December 2007 Section 1018 -
Disclosure Rule Enforcement Response and Penalty Policy (“Disclosure Penalty Policy); and
(ii) for RRP Rule violations, the August 2010 Consolidated Enforcement Response and Penalty
Policy for the Pre-Renovation Education Rule; Renovation, Repa'ir and Painting Rule; and

Lead-Based Paint Activities Rule (“RRP Penalty Policy™”). Copies of the Disclosure Penalty
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being leased or sold or that no such

lists exists.

Total $5.690
Total with 15% culpability $6,543.50
adjustment

b. Respondents Pike and 1533 Chapel, LLC, $41,595.50 for three target housing units.

Count Regulation Violated Description Penalty
2 40C.FR. § Failure 1o disclose the presence $19,84v
of known lead-based paint
745.107(a)(2/4) knowledge or records
4 40 CFR. § Failure to include in the lease an | $12,190
attachment thereto a statement by
745.113(b)(2) the lessor or owner disclosing the

presence of known lead-based
paint or lead-based paint hazards,
or lack of knowledge thereof

5 40C.FR. § Failure to include as an $3,990
attachment or with the lease a list
745.113(b)(3) of records or reports available

pertaining to lead-based paint
and/or lead based paint hazards
in the target housing being leased
or sold or that no such lists
exists.

6 40CFR. § Failure to include as attachment $150
or within lease signatures and
745.113(b)(6) dates for tenants and lessor

Total $36,170

Total with 15% culpability $41,595.50
adjustment
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c. Respondents Pike and Quinnipiac Gardens, Inc. $44,482 for one target housing unit.

Count Regulation Violated Description Penalty
1 40 C.F.R. § 745.107(a)(1) | Failure to provide an EPA- $16,000
approved lead hazard information
pamphlet
3 40 C.F.R. § 745.113(b)(2) | Failure to include in the lease an $11,340

attachment thereto a statement by
the lessor or owner disclosing the
presence of known lead-based
paint or lead-based paint hazards,
or lack of knowledge thereof

4 40 C.F.R. § 745.113(b)(3) | Failure to include as an attachment | $8,500
or with the lease a list of records or
reports available pertaining to
lead-based paint and/or lead based
paint hazards in the target housing
being leased or sold or that no such
lists exists.

6 40 C.F.R. § 745.113(b)(6) | Failure to include as attachment or | $2,840
within lease signatures and dates
for tenants and lessor

Total $38,680
Total with 15% culpability $44,482
adjustment

d. Respondents Pike and H & H Residential, LLC, $14,214 total for three target housing

units.

it Regulation Violated Description Penalty

l 40 C.F.R. § 745.107(a)1) | Failure to provide an EPA- $2,840
approved lead hazard information
pamphlet

4 40 C.F.R. § 745.113(b)}2) | Failure to include in the lease an $6,520
attachment thereto a statement by
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the lessor or owner disclosing the
presence of known lead-based
paint or lead-based paint hazards,
or lack of knowledge thereof

5 40 C.F.R. § 745.113(b)3) | Failure to include as an attachment | $2,140
or with the lease a list of records or
reports available pertaining to
lead-based paint and/or lead based
paint hazards in the target housing
being leased or sold or that no such
lists exists.

6 40 C.F.R. § 745.113(b)(6) | Failure to include as attachment or $860
within lease signatures and dates
for tenants and lessor

Total $12,360
Total with 15% cuipability $14,214
adjustment

¢. Respondents Pike and FOR LIFE LLC, $816.50 total for one target housing unit.

Count Regulation Violated Description Penalty
6 40 C.F.R. § 745.113(b)6) | Failure to include as attachment or $710

within lease signatures and dates
for tenants and lessor

Total with 15% culpability $816.50
adjustment

f. Respondents Pike and 287 Norton Street, LLC, $16,295.50 total for one target housing

unit.

Count Regulation Violated Description Pty
1 40 C.F.R. § 745.107(a)(1) | Failure to provide an EPA- $8,500
approved lead hazard information
pamphlet
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h. Respondents Pike and 477 Prospect, LLC, $816.50 for one target housing unit.

adjustment

Count Regulation Violated Description Penalty
6 40 C.F.R. § 745.113(b)(6) | Failure to include as attachment or $710
within lease signatures and dates
for tenants and lessor
Total with 15% culpability $816.50

i. Respondents Pike and 80 Sherman, LLC, $1,483.40 for one target housing unit.

Count

Regi " " Violated

Description

Penalty

4

40 C.F.R. § 745.113(b)(2)

Failure to include in the lease an
attachment thereto a statement by
the lessor or owner disclosing the
presence of known lead-based
paint or lead-based paint hazards,
or lack of knowledge thereof

$850

40 CFR. § 745.113(b)(3)

Failure to include as an attachment
or with the lease a list of records or
reports available pertaining to
lead-based paint and/or lead based
paint hazards in the target housing
being leased or sold or that no such
lists exists.

$290

40 C.FR. § 745.113(b)(6)

Failure to include as attachment or
within lease signatures and dates
for tenants and lessor

$150

Total

$1,290

Total with 15% culpability
adjustment

$1,483.50
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Wanda I. Santiago, Regional Hearing Clerk

U.S. Environmental Protection Agency — Region 1
5 Post Office Square, Suite 100 (ORA 18-1)
Boston, Massachusetts 02109-3912

and

Andrea Simpson, Senior Enforcement Counsel

U.S. Environmental Protection Agency — Region 1

5 Post Office Square, Suite 100 (OES 04-2)

Boston, MA 02109-3912

94.  Neither the assessment nor payment of an administrative penalty shall affect

Respondent’s continuing obligation to comply with all applicable requirements of federal law.

IV. NOTICE OF OPP™"TUNITY TO REQUEST A HEARING

9s. As provided by Section 16(a)(2)(A) of TSCA, 15 U.S.C. § 2615(a)(2)(A), and in
accordance with 40 C.F.R. § 22.14 of the Consolidated Rules of Practice, Respondent has a right
to request a hearing on any material fact alleged in this Complaint or on the appropriateness of
the proposed penalty. Any such hearing would be conducted in accordance with 40 C.F.R. Part
22. A request for a hearing must be incorporated into a written Answer. Respondent must file
the original and one copy of the written Answer to this Complaint within thirty (30) days of
receipt of this Complaint. Respondent shall send the Answer to the Regional Hearing Clerk at

the following address:
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Wanda I. Santiago, Regional Hearing Clerk

U.S. Environmental Protection Agency — Region 1

5 Post Office Square, Suite 100 (ORA 18-1)

Boston, Massachusetts 02109-3912

Respondent shall serve copies of the Answer, and any other documents submitted in this
proceeding, to Complainant’s counsel at the following address:

Andrea Simpson, Senior Enforcement Counsel

U.S. Environmental Protection Agency — Region 1

5 Post Office Square, Suite 100 (OES 04-2)

Boston, MA 02109-3912

96.  Inits Answer, Respondent may contest any material fact contained in the
Complaint. The Answer shall directly admit, deny, or explain each of the factual allegations
contained in the Complaint and shall state: (i) the circumstances or arguments alleged to
constitute the grounds of any defense; (ii) the facts Respondent disputes; (iii) the basis for
opposing any proposed relief; and, (iv) whether a hearing is requested. Where Respondent has no
knowledge as to a particular factual allegation and so states, the allegation is deemed denied. Any
failure of Respondent to admit, deny, or explain any material fact contained in the Complaint
constitutes an admission of that allegation. See 40 C.F.R. § 22.15 for the required contents of an
Answer.
97.  The filing of service of documents other than the complaint, rulings, orders, and

decisions, in all cases before the Region 1 Regional Judicial Officer governed by the

Consolidated Rules of Practice may be filed and served by email, consistent with the “Standing
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ages of six and eighteen warrant a significant extent factor. The documented absence of children
or pregnant women warrants a minor extent factor.

Respondents failed to disclose to the lessee the presence of any known lead-based paint or lead-
based paint hazards in the target housing being leased and/or failed to provide the lessee any
records or reports available pertaining to lead-based paint and/or lead-based paint hazards in the
target housing being leased:

Respondents/ Address Approximate | Children/Ages | Extent of Gravity
Lessors Start of , Harm -Based
Lease Term Penalty

Pike/1533 Chapel LLC | 1533 Chapel/300 unknown

Winthrop #204 10/4/2014 Significant | S50
Pike/ 1533 Chapel LLC | 1533 Chapel/300

Winthrop #BA 2/14/2014 | none Minor $2,840
Pike /1533 Chapel LLC | 1533 Chapel/300 222015 | unknown Significant | $8,500

Winthrop #405

COUNT II1. Failure to Include a L.ead Warning Statement

Provision Violated: 40 C.F.R. § 745.113(b)(1) requires that each contract to lease target
housing include as an attachment, or within the contract, the Lead Warning Statement.

Circumstance Level: Failure to include the Lead Warning Statement in the language of the
lease contract, or an attachment thereto, pursuant to 40 C.F.R. § 745.113(b)(1), results in a high
probability of impairing a lessee’s ability to properly assess information regarding the risks
associated with exposure to lead-based paint and to weigh this information with regard to leasing
the target housing in question. As a result, under the Disclosure Rule ERPP Appendix B, a
violation of 40 C.F.R. § 745.113(b)(1) is a Level 2 violation.

Extent of Harm: The Disclosure Rule ERPP takes into consideration the risk factors for
exposure to lead-based paint and lead-based paint hazards. The potential for harm is measured
by the age of children living in the target housing and the presence of pregnant women living in
the target housing. Children under the age of six are most likely to be adversely affected by the
presence of lead-based paint and lead-based paint hazards, because of how they play and ingest
materials from their environment, and because of their vulnerability due to their physical
development. The harmful effects that lead can have on children under the age of six warrants a
major extent factor. Children between the ages of six and eighteen may be adversely affected by
the presence of lead-based paint and lead-based paint hazards because of their vulnerability due
to their physical development. The harmful effects that lead can have on children between the
ages of six and eighteen warrant a significant extent factor. The documented absence of children
or pregnant women warrants a minor extent factor.

Respondents failed to include the Lead Warning Statement in, or attached to, the leases for the
target housing units identified below:
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Respondents/ Address Approximate | Children/Ages | Extent of Gravity-

Lessors Start of Lease Harm Based
Term Penalty

Pike/173-175 Park Street none

LLC 175 Park St #2 8/26/2014 Minor $1,710

Pike/ Quinnipiac 1314 Quinnipiac Ave $11,340

Gardens Inc #1 5/17/2013 | Yes (< 6) Major

COUNT 1V. Failure to Include Disclosure Statement Regarding Lead-Based
Paint/Hazards

Provision Violated: 40 C.F.R. § 745.113(b)(2) requires that each contract to lease target
housing include, as an attachment or within the lease contract, a statement by a lessor disclosing
the presence of known lead-based paint and/or lead-based paint hazards in the target housing
being leased, or indicating no knowledge of the presence of lead-based paint and/or lead-based
paint hazards.

Circumstance Level: Failing to include the statement of knowledge of lead-based paint and/or
lead-based paint hazards as an attachment, or within the contract to lease target housing, results
in a medium probability of impairing the lessee’s ability to properly assess information regarding
the risks associated with exposure to lead-based paint and/or lead-based paint hazards and to
weigh this information with regard to leasing the target housing in question. Because the intent
of this provision is to put potential lessees on notice of specific information relating to the
presence of lead in the housing, a violation of this provision deprives lessees of their right to
make decisions based u upon risk. As a result, under the Disclosure Rule ERPP, a violation of
40 C.F.R. § 745.113(b)(2) is a Level 3 violation.

Extent of Harm: The Disclosure Rule ERPP takes into consideration the risk factors for
exposure to lead-based paint and lead-based paint hazards. The potential for harm is measured
by the age of children living in the target housing and the presence of pregnant women living in
the target housing. Children under the age of six are most likely to be adversely affected by the
presence of lead-based paint and lead-based paint hazards, because of how they play and ingest
materials from their environment, and because of their vulnerability due to their physical
development. The harmful effects that lead can have on children under the age of six warrants a
major extent factor. Children between the ages of six and eighteen may be adversely affected by
the presence of lead-based paint and lead-based paint hazards because of their vulnerability due
to their physical development. The harmful effects that lead can have on children between the
ages of six and eighteen warrant a significant extent factor. The documented absence of children
or pregnant women warrants a minor extent factor.

Respondents failed to include a statement disclosing the presence of known lead-based paint
and/or lead-based paint hazards in target housing being leased, or indicating no knowledge of the
presence of lead-based paint and/or lead-based paint hazards in, or attached to, the leases for the
target housing units identified below:
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Kesponaents/ “Aaaress Approximate | Children/Ages | Extent of hravﬁy-
Lessors Start of Lease Harm Based
Term Penalty
Pike/173-175 Park Street 175 Park St #2 8/26/2014 | DoONe ' $850
LLC Minor
Pike/1533 Chapel LLC 1533 Chapel/300 . $5,670
Winthrop #204 10/4/2014 | unknown Significant
Pike/Quinnipiac Gardens | 1314 Quinnipiac Ave 5/17/2013 | Yes (< 6) ’ $8,500
Inc. #1 Major
Pike/H & H Residential 17 Edgewood Ave 3/4/2013 | none Minor $850
LLC House
Pike/1>335 Chapel LLC 1533 Chapel #BA 2/14/2014 | none Minor $850
Pike/287 Norton Street | 293 Norton #A-7 4/15/2015 | Yes (6-18) Significant | 5670
Pike/325 Fountain LLC 335 Fountain #1B 1/26/2015 | unknown Significant | $5,670
pike/H & H Residential | 226 Blisworth C6 7/24/2013 | unknown Significant | 5670
Pik~/@" Sherman LLC 80 Sherm~ #6 5/25/2014 | none Minor $850
Pikes 1533 Chapel LLC 1533 Chapel #405 7/2/2015 | unknown Significant | $5,670

COUNT V. F-*ure to Disclose Records or Reports of L.ead-Based Paint/Hazards

Provision Violated: Pursuant to 40 C.F.R. § 745.113(b)(3) each contract to lease target housing
must include a list of any records or reports available to the lessor pertaining to lead-based paint
and/or lead-based paint hazards, or an indication that not such records exist, within or as an
attachment to, the contract.

Circumstance Level: Failure to include a list of any records or reports in a contract to lease
target housing has a relatively low probability of impairing a lessee’s ability to properly assess
and weigh potential health risks when leasing target housing, but could potentially increase the

likelihood of exposure to lead-based paint hazards. As a result, under the ERPP, Appendix B, a
violation of 40 C.F.R. § 745.113(b)(3) is a Level 5 violation.

Extent of Harm: The Disclosure Rule ERPP takes into consideration the risk factors for
exposure to lead-based paint and lead-based paint hazards. The potential for harm is measured
by the age of children living in the target housing and the presence of pregnant women living in
the target housing. Children under the age of six are most likely to be adversely affected by the
presence of lead-based paint and lead-based paint hazards, because of how they play and ingest
materials from their environment, and because of their vulnerability due to their physical
development. The harmful effects that lead can have on children under the age of six warrants a
major extent factor. Children between the ages of six and eighteen may be adversely affected by
the presence of lead-based paint and lead-based paint hazards because of their vulnerability due
to their physical development. The harmful effects that lead can have on children between the
ages of six and eighteen warrant a significant extent factor. The documented absence of children
or pregnant women warrants a minor extent factor.

Respondents failed to include a list of the records or reports, or indicate no such records exist, to
tenants who entered into the leases for the target housing units identified below:
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Respondents/ Address Approximate | Children/Ages | Extent of Gravity-
Lessors Start of Lease Harm Based
Term Penalty
Pike/H & H 17 Edgewood Ave . $150
Residential LL.C House 3/412013 | none Minor
Pike/FOR LIFE LLC 608 George St #11 12/18/2014 | unknown Significant | $710
Pike/1533 Chapel LLC | 1533 Chapel #BA 2/14/2014 | none Minor $150
ike/333 Fountain 335 Fountain #1B 4/15/2015 | unknown Significant | 5/10
Pike/H & H - $710
Resideneint 110 226 Ellsworth C6 7/24/2013 | unknown Significant
Ililllfém /1 rrospect 477 Prospect #3 11/8/2013 | unknown Significant $710
Pike/80 Sherman LLC | 80 Sherman #6 5/25/2014 | none Minor $150

Total penalty for all Lead Disclosure Rule violations including 15% upward adjustment:
$135,711.50

2. RENOVATION, REPAIR AND PAINTING RULE VIOLATIONS

COUNT VII - Failure of a Firm to Obtain Initial Certification

Provision Violated: 40 C.F.R. § 745.81(a)(2)(ii) requires that all firms performing renovations
for compensation must apply to EPA for certification to perform renovations or dust sampling.
No firm may perform, offer, or claim to perform renovations without certification from EPA
under 40 C.F.R. § 745.89 in target housing or child-occupied facilities, unless the renovation
qualifies for one of the exceptions identified in 40 C.F.R. § 745.82.

Circumstance Level: The failure to obtain certification from EPA prior to performing
renovations results in a medium probability of impacting human health and the environment
because a firm that is not certified by EPA is less likely to comply with the work practice
standards of 40 C.F.R § 745.85. As a result, under the LBP Consolidated ERPP Appendix A, a
violation of 40 C.F.R. § 745.81(a)(2)(ii) is a Level 3a violation.

Extent of Harm: The Disclosure Rule ERPP takes into consideration the risk factors for
exposure to lead-based paint and lead-based paint hazards. The potential for harm is measured
by the age of children living in the target housing and the presence of pregnant women living in
the target housing. Children under the age of six are most likely to be adversely affected by the
presence of lead-based paint and lead-based paint hazards, because of how they play and ingest
materials from their environment, and because of their vulnerability due to their physical
development. The harmful effects that lead can have on children under the age of six warrants a
major extent factor. Children between the ages of six and eighteen may be adversely affected by
the presence of lead-based paint and lead-based paint hazards because of their vulnerability due
to their physical development. The harmful effects that lead can have on children between the
ages of six and eighteen warrant a significant extent factor. The documented absence of children
or pregnant women warrants a minor extent factor.
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Circumstance Level: The failure to retain records demonstrating compliance with the RRP
results in a low probability of impacting human health and the environment due to exposure to
lead-based paint, lead dust, and debris. As a result, under the LBP Consolidated ERPP Appendix
A, aviolation of 40 C.F.R § 745.86 is a Level 6a violation.

Extent of Harm: The LBP Consolidated ERPP takes into consideration the risk factors for
exposure to lead-based paint and lead-based paint hazards. The potential for harm is measured
by the age of children living in the target housing and the presence of pregnant women living in
the target housing. Children under the age of six are most likely to be adversely affected by the
presence of lead-based paint and lead-based paint hazards, because of how they play and ingest
materials from their environment, and because of their vulnerability due to their physical
development. The harmful effects that lead can have on children under the age of six warrants a
major extent factor. Children between the ages of six and eighteen may be adversely affected by
the presence of lead-based paint and lead-based paint hazards because of their vulnerability due
to their physical development. The harmful effects that lead can have on children between the
ages of six and eighteen warrant a significant extent factor. The absence of children or pregnant
women warrants a minor extent factor.

Respondent Pike failed to maintain records demonstrating compliance with the RRP Rule after
conducting renovations at the following target housing units:

Respondents/ Address Work order | Work Children | Extent of Harm | Gravity-
Lessors Dates /Ages Based Penalty
Pike 9/18/13- . .
33 Howe 1L 31749 /1213 Minor Minor $600
Pike 1314 Quinnipiac $3,000
Ave #1 35552 3/1/15 Yes, <6 Major

Total penalty for all RRP Rule violations including 15% upward adjustment: $62,031
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